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Chairman's statement

Distinguished Shareholders of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC, Ladies and Gentlemen. As it is customary, let me welcome you to the
2023 Annual General Meeting {AGM) of the Company, during which we shall review and deliberate on the affairs of our
company. As it has now become a part of the so-called “New Normal”, this meeting is taking place both physically and
electronically. We are grateful to God for preserving us to hold this AGM. Again, I say welcome, [ will now proceed to present
the Anntal Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st Decemnber, 2022.

Our company conductad its business in 2022 within the context of the broader Nigerian Economy and factors linked to the
Company itself, I will diseuss the highlights of these events and then present the financial performance for the period.

Safety and Quality

I am happy to report that the Company did not record any Lost Time Accident (:T'4) nor Non-Lost Time Accident (NLTA) in
2022, This puts us at 1781 days without a Lost Time accident since the last unfortunate incident in 2018,

As we do every year, we settled on “Safety, Act Now!” as the theme for 2o022. During the safety month observed in March and
throughout the rest of the year, we actively engaged our staff, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders in our safety
activities. We did this in the full knowledge that without our stakeholders’ participation, we would be unable to achieve and
maintain our time-tested objective of “ZERO ACCIDENT"”, The collective efforts of our staff and stakeholders resulted in the
Company exceeding its 2022 Safety and Industrial Operations targets for 2022 by 100 bps and 1600 bps respectively. We
continued to focus on the key risk areas of Road Safety, Cylinder Handling, Flash Fires, as well as the 12 Life Saving Rules
(LSR) and the roll-out of the Stop Worlk Authority which mandates any staff to stop any process or activity deemed to be risky.
Ladies and Gentlemen given the importance of this topic, I believe it is appropriate to pause and thank the Management and
Staff as well as all our stakeholders for this achievement and to ask that we continue t¢ apply ourselves to closing many more
years ahead without accidents.

Ethics

In line with our code of ethics and principles of action, your company remained committed and vigilant on matters of ethics
throughout the year. In line with this commitment, all staff undertook the mandatory online ethics training. This is in addition
to maintaining a dedicated hotline for any staff to report any suspected cases of ethical infraction,

Operating Environment

In terms of the macro-environment, the year 2022 was quite eventful, Headline inflation which stood at 15.60% at the
beginning of the year, rose consistently to 21.47% in November before easing marginally to 21.34% in December. The exchange
rate also followed a similar trajectory in the course of the year. The US Dollar opened the year selling at 413.67 Naira to a US
Dollar and closing the year at 449.05 Naira to a Dollar. This happened within a context of limited availability of foreign
exchange, On the other hand, the Monetary Policy Committee of the Central Bank of Nigeria consistently hiked its benchmark
policy rate from March 2022 to December 2022 by a combined total of 500bps from 11.5% to 16.5% (source: Central Bank of
Nigeria). Along with these was the perennial problem of congestion, and a general hike in fees and charges at the ports.
Despite all these headwinds, the economy grew by 3.1% exceeding the IMF’s October forecast of 3.0%. When viewed against
the backdrop of a GDP growth of 3.4% in 2021, one might be tempted to view the 2022 growth rate negatively, far from it,
Given the local circumstances, global context, and recent trends, we take a positive view of this outcome.

For purposes of clarity, some of the most significant events during the year are detailed below:

# Nigeria’s inflation rate in 2022 remained high throughout the year with an end of year inflation of 21,34%, This also
impacted food inflation as well as the general cost of doing business,

& The MPR was increased to 16.5% in November 2022 from 11.5% in January 2022 with the asymmetric corridor maintained
at +100/-700 basis points, the Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) was increased to 32.50% in September 2022 from 27.5%, The
liquidity ratic was maintained at 30% through the year.

¢ Lending rates evolved in line with the movement in the Policy Rate.

¢ Bonny Light crude oil opened in 2022 at US$80.07 per barrel and ended the year at US$82.58 (source: Central Bank of
Nigeria). The price in 2022 was consistently higher than the US$62/barrel used for the 2022 National budget.



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Chairman's statement

¢ Foreign Direct Investment inte Nigeria increased by US$725.05 Million in September 2022, Inflows had previously declined
by -322.86 Million US$ and -1,537.28 Millicn US$ respectively in Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 (source: Central Bank of Nigeria),

» Continged forex shortages and the resultant liguidity management by the Central Banlk of Nigeria (CBN).
¢ ASUU industrial action that lasted from 14th February to 14th October 2022,
¢ Devastating floods inundated hundreds of villages, urban centres and farm fields, creating a cascade of problems,

¢ Unresolved challenges with critical infrastructure such as electricity supply, road network and iransportation, seaport
congestions and cargo clearing inefficiencies.

» Social and political agitations across various regions.
¥

1

® Fuel {PMS) prices were up by 263.2% from a year ago and currently sold for as high as ¥600/litre in some states.

e Forex scarcity persisted throughout the year with the US Dollar selling between 413.67 Naira to 449.05 Naira (source:
Central Bank of Nigeria).

Ladies and Gentlemen, it is within this context that your company conducted its affairs during the period under review. I shall
now discuss your company’s performance in 2022,

Company Performance

From the operaticnal point of view, the underlying structure of the business was not substantially different from what
obtained in 2021, That notwithstanding, turnover grew by 7% during the period. As was the case in 2021, this was achieved
without a functional Air Separation Unit as the cornmissioning was tiot completed before the close of the year, We therefore
relied on sourcing produets locally with its attendant challenges in terms of efficiency and reliability, The persisting forex
scarcity also constrained our capacity to import products and where we did, the costs were often high, induced by not only
high forex costs, but also included high shipping costs, high clearing costs, product losses at the ports due to long clearing
times, as well as energy cost inflation in Europe. The net effect of these is that the business faced substantial cost inflation. It
also lost out on about 0.94 Billion Naira in sales. To mitigate these headwinds, management pursued a twe-pronged action of
cost reduction and cost pass-through.

Overall, the efforts of the teams with the active support of your Directors vielded a turnover of 2,012 Billion Naira as against
the 2021 turnover of 1.885 Billion Naira. Profit after tax stood at 954 Million Naira compared to 314 Million Naira in 2021 and
impacted by the write-off of about 1.021 Billion Naira in intercompany debts owed to Air Liquide Oil and Gas Services (ALOS}.

Distinguished Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen, as I pointed out in my report to you last year, we expected 2022 to come
with its own challenges, but I also did inform you that your Directors and Management were determined to forge ahead
notwithstanding the challenges. I hasten to affirm that we did just that and in addition we shall continue to work tirelessly to
bring the Company back to a position of sustained growth.

I have the agsurances of our Project Teams that the Air Separation Unit (ASU) will be operational by the 2nd half of 2023.
With that, we will restore some measure of reliability and be in a position to serve our customers better, bringing them the

much needed value we are noted for, That said, I am in no doubt aware that we stili have enormous challenges ahead of us and |

will therefore need to stay focused in order to consolidate the gains of the last two years. On behalf of the Board, the
Management and the Staff, I promise you we will do just that. We shall work tirelessly to justify the confidence you have
reposed in your company.

Proposed Dividend

Despite reporting a profit for the 2o22 financial vear and mindful of the headwinds ahead of us for which we will require
resources to surmount, the Board of Directors proposes that no dividends be declared this year.
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Outlook for year 2023

With the worst of the covid-19 pandemic largely behind us, 2023 will be defined in part by the ongoing Russia - Ukraine crisis
which has brought in its rail substantial increases in energy prices in Europe, as well as global inflationary pressures, On the
local frout, it is safe to expect some further tightening of monetary policies, inflationary pressures and concerns about the level
of debt, as well as increasing conversations around the subject of energy transition.
Some key areas and metrics to watch include;
GDP:

o Glohal growth is projected to be about 2.9% {source: International Monetary Fund).

# A 2023 GDP growth of 3.2% (source: International Monetary Fund).

Inflation:

¢ Global inflation in 2023 to be at about 6,6%, well above the pre~-pandemic levels of about 3.5% (source:
International Monetary Fund).

* Food, energy inflation and global cost of living crigis likely to persist.
« Inflation in Nigeria to remain in double digits and projected at about 13.4% (source: International Monetary Fund).
Monetary Policy:

» The rise in central bank rates to fight inflation and the effects of the Russia - Ukraine conflict (source:
International Monetary Fund).

& Tighter global financing costs could worsen debt distress (source: International Monetary Fund),

« Tighter monetary conditions and lower growth across the world to potentially affect financial and debt stability
(source; International Monetary Fund).

¢ The Central Bank of Nigeria is likely to tighten Monetary policy in an effort to among others reduce inflation.

Apart from these factors, we also expect robust competition from the myriads of players on the market. I hasten to add though
that, we view competition as healthy for the industry and are confident that your company will prevail aided by our expertise
and intimate knowledge of the market, global networks, and wide offerings. These will be backed-up by access to new
technology and the benefits of group innovation.

With the healthy crude cil prices, the level of activity in the 0&G industry which is our core market has been appreciable in the
last couple of months. This, together with projects like the Nigeria LNG Train 7, and the on-going AKK project hode well for
our company.

We are therefore optimistic that, with the help of the Almighty God, and our collective efforts, we shall meet here in another 12
manths to present a much more pleasing narrative.

BOARD CHANGES
Since the last Annual General Meeting, Mr. Alexandre Dufour resigned as a Director of the Company on 28th February, 2023
and Mr. Olivier Jacquet was appointed a Director on 20th March, 2023, which appointment comes up for ratification at this

meeting of the Company.,

On the other hand, Messrs. Felix Sunday Afolabi and Aliyu Jimeta retive by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Conclusion

Finally, I wish to thank all our management team, our dear staff, the members of the audit committee, my colieagues on tac
Board of Air Liquide Nigeria Ple, our cherished customers and other stakeholders; first for your support in diverse ways
CTUURIIUUL LG YD dliu 1 your uine AU A0, GOU WLHILLIEE dllu WL your SUpport, we SIIAL AUVATICE LIE COourse o1 our
company.

On our part, we will continue to work to ensure you derive the value you so much deserve from your company.

Thank you again and may the Almighty God continue to guide and bless us.

r
_sufiday Felix Afolabi

Lagos, Nigeria
2 Maie i 2023
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Report of the directors

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 to the members of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC (the Company). The report discloses the financial performance and state of
affairs of the Company,

Legal form

Afr Liguide Nigeria PLC was incorporated in Nigeria on 25 January 1960 under the Companies and Allied Matters Act as Port
Harcourt Gas Producers Limited, and is domiciled in Nigeria. It changed Its name on 29 June 1966 to Gas Producers Limited. On
26 February 1992, the name was again changed to Air Liquide Nigeria Plc. The Company is a Public Limited Liability Company
listed on the National Agsociation of Securities Dealers (NASD),

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and sale of industrial and medical gases and related services, Tt also
imports and sells medical and welding equipment and accessories,

State of affairs
In the opinion of the directors, the state of affairs of the Company is satisfactory and there are no events that have occurred since

the reporting date which may affect the financial statements as presented and disclosed in Note go.

Results and dividends
The Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on page 25. The profit for the year of ¥a54.2 million
{2021: ¥314.1 million) has been transferred to accumulated deficits. The summarised results are presented below,

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

N'ooo - Nwooo

Revenue 2,012,173 1,884,776
Profit before tax 1,067,550 326,409
Income tax expense (97,045) (2,857)
Profit for the year 054,166 314,128
Other comprehensive income net of taxes - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 954,166 314,128

The directors are not recommending any dividend for declaration in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Property, plant and equipment

Information relating to changes in property, plant and equipment (PP&E) is shown in Note 13 to the financial statements. In the
opinion of the directors, the market value of the Company's property, plant and equipment is not less than the carrying value
shown in the financial statements.

Acquisition of own shares
The Company has not purchased any of its own shares during the year under review (2021; Nil),

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 7.
Messrs. Felix Sunday Afolabi and Aliyu Jimeta retire by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors' shareholding

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report together with their direct and indirect interests in the
issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings and/or as notified by the directors for
the purposes of section 301 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act are as follows:
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Director
Mr. Felix S. Afolabi

Directors' interests in contracts

Number of shares held at 31 December 2022 and 2021

Direct
284,597

Indirect

Percentage
Total holding
284,597 0.05%

None of the directers has notified the Company for the purpose of section 303 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020 of
their direct or indirect interest in contracts or proposed contracts with the Company during the vear.

Substantial interest in shares

At 31 December 2022, L’Alr Liquide S.A. held 506,157,600 ordinary shares, being 87.31% of the paid up share capital of the
Company (2021: 506,157,600 ordinary shares), No other individual shareholder held more than 10% of the issued share capital of

the Company. ,
Number of shares held at 31 December 2022 and 2021

o . Percentage
Sharcholding information Direct Indirect Total holding
L'Air Liquide S.A. 506,157,600 - 506,157,600 87.31%
Mr. Felix S. Afolabi 284,597 - 284,597 0.05%
Nigerian citizens/ Companies 73,504,264 - 73,304,264 12.64%

579,746,461 - 579,746,461 100%
Share range analysis as at 31 December 2022
No. of

Share range shareholders Holders’ % Units Units %
1-1,000 159 27,09 61,549 0.01
1,001 — 5,000 g8 16.70 273,523 0.05
5,001 — 10,000 74 12.61 536,255 0.09
10,001 — 50,000 145 24.70 3,839,921 0.66
50,001 - 100,000 41 6.98 3,163,509 0.55
100,001 — 500,000 41 6.98 9,697,333 1.67
500,001 — 1,000,000 9 1.53 6,427,208 110
1,000,001 ~ 5,000,000 17 2.90 30,659,128 5.29
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 1 Q.17 8,576,784 1.48
16,000,001 - 50,000,000 1 0.17 10,353,561 1.79
500,000,001 - 1,000,000,000 1 0.17 506,157,600 87.31
Total 587 100 579,746,461 100
Shareholders' represeniative
Air Liquide Afrique Mr. Alexandre Dufour
Contributions and charitable gifts
The Company spent about ¥3.32 million {2021: ¥5.10 million) in respect of corporate social responsibility.
Suppliers
The Company's significant local suppliers include:
Name Relationship
Industrial & Medical Gases Nigeria Plc. Supplier
Apex African Gas Nigeria Ltd. Supplier
Indorama Petrochemicals Co. Ltd. Supplier
Hemarite Ofl and Gas Services Ltd. Supplier
Heritage Maritime Services Limited Supplier
Zahgab Entreprises Supplier
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The Company’s significant overseas suppliers are:

Name Relationship
Air Liquide 0il and Gas Services Related Party

Air Liquide Specna (Tunisia) Related Party
L’Air Liquide S.A., France Holding company
Air Liquide Africa Services (Pty) Ltd Related Party
Airgas Related Party
Ultimate Holding Company

The ultimate holding company is L’Air Liquide $.A., France.

Technical and license agreements . :

The Company has entered into a Technology Licence and Assistance Agreement and a Trademarks and Trade-name Licence
Agreement with L'Air Liquide S.A., France, its holding company. Under the Technology and Assistance Agreement, LAir Liquide
S.A,, France permits Air Liquide Nigeria PLC to use any of its technologies. L’Air Liquide 8.A., shall also provide assistance for the
use of same. Under the Trademarks and Trade-name Licence Agreement, the Company is permitted to use any and all
trademarks owned by L'Air Liquide S.A., France.

The two agreements took effect from 30 December 1997,

In consideration of the agreement, the Company shall pay to L’Air Liquide 5.A., France the following:~
= Under the Technology Licence and Assistance Agreement and the Trademarks and Trade-name Licence Agreement, the
Company shall make a total payment of 2.0% of net sales and 0.3% of net sales respectively.

Due to the actual Forex issues in Nigeria and the difficulties to make payments, Air Liguide S.A has agreed to waive the effects of
the agreements for 3 vears (starting from 2022).

Employment and employees

Employment policies

It is the policy of the Company that there is no discrimination in considering applieations for employment including those from
physically challenged persons, There is no physically challenged person in the employment of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). It is the Company's policy to consider physically challenged persons for employment, bearing in
mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. All employees whether or not physically challenged are
given equal opportunities te develop their experience and knowledge and to qualify for promotion in furtherance of their careers.

Employees’ involvement and training
The Company is committed to keeping etmployees fully informed regarding its performance and progress and seeking their views
wherever practicable on matters which particularly affect them as employees.

The managerial, professional and technical expertise of staff are the Company’s major assets, and investments in developing such
skills continue. The Company’s manpower development programme has been adapted to the evolving needs so as to create
improved career prospects within the organisation.

Incentive schemes designed to meet the circumstances of each individual and to encourage performance are implemented
wherever appropriate and some of these schemes include bonuses, promotions, wage reviews among others.

Health, safety at work and welfare of emplovees

Health and Safety regulations are in force within the Company’s premises and employees are aware of the existing regulations,
The Company provides subsidy to all employees for meals, transportation, housing, etc. The Company continues to subseribe to
health insurance coverage for all its staff. This has been fully operational since 2013.

Events after the reporting date

As stated in Note 30, there are no events or transactions that have occurred since the reporting date which could have a material
effect on the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 and on the resulis of the year ended that have been taken inte account
in the preparation of these financial statements.

1c¢



Format of financial statements

The financial statements of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC have been prepared in accordance with the reporting and presentation
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

Auditors

The Company's auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continve in office in accordance
with section 401(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) 2020.

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the

auditors.

By order of the board

A.O0. OYEBANJO teA l"p}.:
Wlaadsi iy

FRC/2013/1CSAN/000000§3281
For: Marina Nominees Limited
Company secretary, Lagos, Nigeria

Do Novd —
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The Board of Directors of Air Liquide Nigeria comprises seven members consisting of one Executive Director and six Non-
Executive Directors. The Board formulates the broad policies and takes strategic decisions for the management and operations of
Air Liquide Nigeria Ple in line with the Company’s objectives.

Mr. Felix Sunday Afolabi is the Non-Executive Chairman of Air Liquide Nigeria. He
graduated with a B.Eng degree in Industrial Chemistry from Ecole Nationale Supérieure
de Chimie (1983) and obtained a University of Technology degree in Industrial
Chemistry in France (1980). He began his professional career in Air Liquide Group in
1983 and has served in various capacities including Industrial operations and
maintenance director and technical director for the Western and Central Africa Region.
His experience cuts across operations and entity management within Western and
Central Africa. He became the Non-Executive Chairman of Air Liquide Nigeria in
September 2018 and has been on the Board of Air Liquide Nigeria since 2013.

Mr. Sulemana Dauda is the Managing Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc. Sulemana
was appointed Managing Director for Air Liquide’s West Coast region, comprising
Nigeria, Ghana, Togo and Benin in January 2019. Sulemana holds a M.Sc. degree in
Computer Engineering from University City José Antonio Echeverria (1992) and a
Master of Business Administration in International Business from the Paris
Graduate School of Management (2006). He has extensive industry experience
spanning 26 years across the western and central Africa sub-regions. In 2008, he
served as Mining Business Development Manager for western and central Africa and
subsequently moved to Burkina Faso as the General Manager of Air Liquide Burkina
Faso from 2009 to 2011. In January 2012, he was appointed the Executive Director
of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc with responsibility for the operations in the South and
South-East of Nigeria and subsequently served as Managing Director from May 2013
to October 2016. He was subsequently appointed to manage the Working Capital
improvement project in the Africa Cluster, spanning 22 countries and 32
subsidiaries. Following a difficult period of instability, he was brought back to
Nigeria in June 2018 to lead the renewal and transformation of the business. He is a
transformational leader with a track record of turning around businesses for
profitable growth. Sulemana has attended various Business Development,
Management and leadership training programs in Europe, the Middle East and
Africa.
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Mr. Alexandre Dufour is a Non-Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc, and is the
Managing Director of Air Liquide West and Central Africa region. Alexandre has B.Sc.
(Hons) degree in Engineering from Ecam Lycon (1999) and holds an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from INSEAD (2014). He commenced his career in
January 1999 as a Mechanical Engineer in the University of California, before joining Air
Liquide Group as an Operations Controller for large industry Benelux in Brussels in
August 1999. His career in Air Liquide Group spans across various business areas,
including Energy Purchases and Corporate Finance before he became Operations
Controller for South East Asia and India in May 2011. Alexandre also worked as JV
General Manager in Wesfarmers, an industrial conglomerate in Perth Australia, from
June 2011 to December 2014. He returned to Air Liquide Group as Director of strategic
control & BI digital transformation in July 2015 and was appointed Managing Director
of Air Liquide West and Central Africa region in June 2018. He was appointed Non-
Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc in June 2018,

Mr. Aliyu Jimeta is a Non-Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Ple. He holds an
Economics degree from University of Lagos 1998. He commenced his career with
Guaranty Trust Bank Plc where he worked in various departments including
operations, commercial, corporate and institutional banking. He was notably a
relationship manager for various top end downstream and support service customers
in the oil and gas segment. He moved to Stanbic IBTC Holdings Ple where he was in-
charge of the oil and gas upstream portfolio and subsequently the downstream
portfolio before leaving the banking industry to join Taleveras group, an oil and gas
company in 2008 as Finance Director. He is currently the Executive Director at
Leighton Trading and Marketing Limited. He became a Non-Executive Director of
Air Liquide Nigeria Plc in November 2018.
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Mr. Ottih John Ottih is a Non-Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Ple. He holds
a B.Sc degree in Electrical and Electronics Engineering from the University of Nigeria
Nsukka. He has over 40 years of professional, managerial and leadership experience.
He started his career as an Electrical Engineer with National Electric Power
Authority (NEPA) before joining Shell Petroleum Development Company of Nigeria
Limited (SPDC) as an Electrical Project Engineer. In SPDC, he built a broad stream
of oil and gas experience having worked across six business segments including,
Engineering, Maintenance, Operations, Asset Management, Performance
Improvement and Stakeholder Management while holding senior managerial
positions. From 2010 to 2013, he served as 4 consultant to the Nigeria Infrastructure
Advisory Facility, a Department of International Development (UK) sponsored
agency supporting the Nigeria power sector. He currently serves as the Founder and
Chairman of South Atlantic Energy Limited, an oil, gas and power consulting
company in Nigeria. He joined the Board of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc in December
2017 as a Non-Executive Director,

Mr. Philippe Martinez is a Non-Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc. He
obtained a degree in Macroeconomics and Finance from University of California (1991)
and M.Sc degree in Business Administration and Management from INSEEC (1992). He
also holds a Master's degree in Internal Auditing from Aix-Marseille University (1993).
He is an alumnus of INSEAD's, International Development Program (2004); HEC
School of Management's Executive Education in Strategy (2006); Health Sciences
Institute’s Professional Program on Disease Management (2007); Harvard Business
School Executive Education in Leadership and Strategy in Pharmaceuticals and Biotech
(2011); INSEAD’s Executive Education in Building Businesses (2014) and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology’s Executive Education in Digital Marketing and
Social Media Analytics (2017). He has served in various capacities within Air Liquide
Group from Vice President of Home Healthcare in Paris to Vice President of Healthcare
and Hydrogen Energy in Japan (2014) to the position of Senior Vice President of Asia
from 2008 to 2016. He held the position of Vice President of Industrial Markets in
France in 2016 before he was appointed to his current position as Vice President for
Africa Cluster. He joined the Board of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc in August 2019 as a Non-
Executive Director.

14
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Ms. Takudzwa Wendy Mudzengi is a Non-Executive Director of Air Liquide Nigeria Ple.
She holds a Honours Bachelor’s degree in Accounting Science from the University of
South Aftica (2009) and she qualified as a chartered accountant with the South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants in 2011. Her career started in 2007 with Ernst &
Young Zimbabwe where she worked with a large number of companies listed on the
Zimbabwe Stock Exchange. In 2014 she was then transferred to Ernst & Young South
Africa in Assurance where she worked with a number of companies across diverse
industries including listed and non-listed entities. She has over 15 years financial
experience gained at EY and recently with Air Liquide. She joined Air Liquide in May
2020 as the Financial Controller for Air Liquide Africa Cluster based in South Africa, a
role she currently holds to date. She is also a Non- Executive Director of Air Liquide
Large Industry Proprietary Limited in South Africa. She joined the Board of Air Liquide
Nigeria Ple in July 2021 as a Non-Executive Director.

15
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Statement of directors' responsibilities

The Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that
give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the Company at the end of the year and of its profit or loss. The
responsibilities include:

a)  ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable aceuracy, the financial
position of the Company and comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020 and with the
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No 6 2011;

b)  desigming, Implementing and maimntainng internal cONtrol relevant to the preparation and [air presentation ot nnanciat
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; and

¢)  preparing the Company's financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
Juagements and esumates tnat are COnsistently appiied.

The directors aceept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Financial Reporting
Council of Nigeria Act.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the
Company and of its profit for the year. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records
that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least
twelve months from the date of this statement.

D
r/.
KF_glj‘xJSi.mday Afolabi Sulemana Kwesi Dauda
FRC/2016/I0DN/00000014110 FRC/2014/10DN/00000007679
Chairman Managing Director
2\ Mzue e W s628 2 Magcla 2023
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Air Ligquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Report of corporate governance

Corporate governance
Air Liquide Nigeria PLC recognises the importance of good corporate governance as a means of sustaining the viability of the
business in the long term and has embraced the tenets of good corporate governance in its practices, processes and structures,

In the conduct of its business, the Company has scught to comply with all statutory requirements, adopted tried and proven best
practices to protect the environment and its employees, invested in the communities in which it operates and strave to enhance ;
shareholders’ value in the process. The Company adopts near-term as well as medium and long term growth strategies, and

allocates rescurces in order to guarantee the creation of wealth. It promotes and recognises excellence through its employess’

development programmes.

The Company has put in place systems of internal controls in order to safeguard the interests of shareholders and other

stakeholders, and to ensure the reliability of its records. As indicated in the notes to the financial statements, the business adopts

standard accounting practices to facilitate transparency in the disclosure of information and to give assurance regarding the

reliability of the financial statements. . .

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the corporate governance of the Company. The Directors are responsible
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial status of the Company
and ensures that the Accounts comply with the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020.

The Board is composed of professionals in their various areas of expertise as well as in the core activities of the Company in order
to ensure that the required knowledge base is available at all times to guide and sustain its operations, formulate good practices
for competitive advantage, and to promote innovation and customer-centricity.

The Board comprises one full-time Executive Director (Managing Director of the Company) and six other Directors who are Non-
Executive, one of whom is the Chairman. Among the Non-Executive Directors is the Adr Liquide West Africa Area Director with
oversight responsibility for Air Liquide Nigeria PLC.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited to the following:

- Setting overall Company’s objectives and policies aimed at maximising shareholders’ values

~ Approval of strategic plans and financial statements

- Approval of appropriations and distribution of profits

- Designing and maintenance of internal controls

- Ensuring a governance process which is in line with the National Corporate Governance Code of the Federal Republic of
Nigeria, and conforming with the rules of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020,

- Determination and implementation of matters reserved for the general Board.

The Board meets regularly and as often as the need arises but not less than three times per year. The Board met three times in the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 and details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Names of the Directors Dates of Board Meetings

31-Mar-22 16-Jun-22 7-Dec-22
Felix Sunday Afolabi (Chairman) Present Present Present
Sulemana Kwesi Dauda (Managing Director} Present Present Present
Aliyu Jimeta Present Present Present
Ottih John Ottih Present Abhsent Present
Alexandre Marie Dominique Laurent Dufour Present Present Present
Philippe Jean-Paul Martinez Absent Absent Present
Ms, Takudzwa Wendy Mudzengi Present Present Present
The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is made up of three representatives of the Shareholders and two members of the Board. The Committee is
chaired by a representative of the Shareholders. The Committee mests to review the adequacy of the internal and external audit
plans, o receive and deliberate on the report of the external auditors, to review progress on recommendations made in both the
internal and external audit reports, to review the adequacy of internal control systems and the degree of business compliance
with laid down internal policies, laws, code of business principles and any other relevant regulatory framework, The Commitiee
met four times in the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and details of the attendance of the members are as follows:
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Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Report of corporate governance

Names of Audit Committee Members Dates of Audit Comimnittee Meetings

. ) 9-Feb-22 2g-Mar-22 25-Aug-22 9-Dec-22
fg}?:il:g air))r. Evang. (Dr.) Anthony. O. Omojola Present Present Present Present
Samuel. 0. Onukwue Present Present Present Present
Alexandre Marie Dominique Laurent Dufour Absent Present Absent Present
Mrs, Ameni Ajili Present Present Present Present
Ms. Takudzwa Wendy Mudzengi Present Present Present Present

Board Committees
The following Board Committees have been established:

1 Audit & Risk Management Committee
The Committee is composed of Non-Executive Directors excluding the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
in line with Principle 11 of the National Code of Corporate Governance in Nigeria issued by the Nigerian Code of Corporate
Governance. The Committee met twice in the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and details of the attendance of the

members are as follows:

Dates of Committee Meetings
Members 30-Mar-22 5-Dec-22
Ms. Takudzwa Wendy Mudzengi (Chairman) Present Present
Mr. Alexandre Marie Dominique Laurent Dufour Present Absent
Mr. Aliyu Jimeta Present Present

2 Nomination, Governance & Remuneration Committee
The Committee is composed of Non-Executive Directors excluding the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
in line with Principle 11 of the National Code of Corporate Governance in Nigeria issued by the Nigerian Code of Corporate
Governance. The Committee met once in the financial year ended 31 December 2622 on the 05 December 2022 and
attendance was as follows:

Members

Mr. Aliyu Jimeta (Chairman) Present
Mr. Ottih John Ottih Prasent
Mr, Philippe Martinez Present

The Management Team

The management team is comprises of the following members:

Mr, Sulemana K. Dauda Managing Director

Mr, Peter Nwabuisi Senior Sales & Marketing Manager

Mr. Cedric Chembou Finance Manager

Mr. Emeghinike Okeaji Credit Control Manager

Mr. Albert Nwachuku Procurement Manager

Mr. Olusola Oke Internal Controller

Mr. Victor Stephen HSE, Security & Local Content Manager.
Mrs, Blessing Onu Operations Manager/Site Manager PHC

The management team meets regularly to review the performance of the Company and assess progress against the achievement of
laid down objectives. It also reviews programmes and strategies, and assigns responsibilities and resources for achievement of the
set goals, Consequently, the management team is charged with the responsibility of identifying and assessing the risk profile
within which the Company is operating, with a view to eliminating or minimising the impact of such risk to the achievement of set
Company’s objectives,

Internal Control

The Company employs reasonable and appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of its financial statements that ensure
that a sound system of internal control that safeguards its assets and shareholders’ wealth is maintained. This is enhanced by the
activities of the internal controller’s office whose function includes that of meonitoring compliances with laid down Company's
policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
Report of corporate governance

Code of Conduct
The Company’s operations are governed by a code of conduct which comprises the core values held as a bond with all
stakeholders and these include integrity which ensures that the Company maintains the highest level of honesty and principles,

and subscribe to the highest standard of ethical conduct.

Attestation
The Directors assert that all the assets and liabilities of the Company have heen reliably measured and stated within the

identifiable elements in the financial statements.

['hey are also responsible for sateguarding the assets of the Company by taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

During the year under review, the Company was managed by a Board of seven Directors: one Executive Director and six Non-
Executive Directors.

AT |
7 —
[

FelixSunday Afolabi Sulemana Kwesi Dauda
FRC/2016/I0DN/00000014110 FRC/2014/I0DN/00000007679
Chairman Managing Director

2l Marein 2023 5l Meuz t 2023
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Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Statement of corporate responsibility for financial reports

Further to the provisions of section 405 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, we the Managing Director and the
Accounts Manager of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC (the Company) hereby certify as follows:

Ly Pr @ LAVE TEVIEWEL LLIE IALICIAL SLALELHIENLS, dilu Ddsed ULl oul Knowleage tne:

(1) audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact, which
would make the statements misleading, in the light of the circumstances under which such statement was made, and

(ii) audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the statements fairly present, in all material
respects, the finaneial condition and results of operation of the Company as of and for the periods covered by the audited
financial statements;

(b) We certity that we:

(i) are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and have designed such internal controls to ensure that
material information relating to the Company is made known to us by other officers of the Company, particularly during the
period in which the audited financial statement report is being prepared,

(i) have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal controls within go days prior to the date of its audited financial
statements, and

(iii) certify that the Company’s internal controls are effective as of that date.

(¢) We disclosed to the Company’s auditors and audit committee:

(i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the Company’s ability
to record, process, summarise and report financial data, and have identified for the Company’s auditors any material

weaknesses in internal controls, and

(ii) whether or not, there is any fraud that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company’s internal control; and

d) We have indicated in the report, whether or not, there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that
could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective actions with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Sulemana Kwesi Dauda Emeghinike Okeoji
FRC/2014/10DN /00000007679 FRC/2022/PRO/ICAN/001/23369
Managing Director Accounts Manager
24 M cutAn 2023 Al Meu-=4a 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
Report of the audit commuittee

Report of the audit committee to the shareholders of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC.

We have examined the Independent auditor's report for the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with the provisions of
Section 404 (7) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020,

in againon, we have reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company tor the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
reports thereon, and hereby state as follows:

i. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical
practices.

ii.  The scope and planning of audit requirements were in our opinion adequate.

111, We have reviewed the nindings on Management matters with the external auditors and are satistied with the response ot
Management thereon.

iv.  The Company's system of accounting and internal controls was adequate.
v.  We have made the recommendations required to be made in respect of the external auditors.

vi.  We authorised the internal auditor to carry out investigations into any activities of the Company which may be of
interest or concern to the committee.

>
| P
Superior Snr. Evang, (Dr.) A.O. OMOJOLA

FRC/2013/CIBN /00000002341
Chairman — Audit Committee

21 Meaeda 2023

MENMBEKS UF 1THE AUDLL CUMMILLLED
Superior Snr. Evang. (Dr.) Anthony. O. Omojola (Chairman)
Samuel. O. Onukwue

Alexandre Marie Dominique Laurent Dufour

Ameni Ajili

Takudzwa Wendy Mudzengi

21



pwe

Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, Air Liquide Nigeria PLC’s (“the Company’s”) financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act,

What we have audited

Air Liquide Nigeria PLC’s financial statements comprise:

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022;

L]

e thestatement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards), i.e., the IESBA Code issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Chairman’s
statement, Corporate information, Report of the directors, Directors’ profile, Statement of directors’
responsibilities, Report of corporate governance, Statement of corporate responsibility for financial reports,
Report of the audit committee, Value added statement and Five-year financial summary, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

- PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants, Landmark Towers, 5B Water Corporation Road, Victoria
Island, Lagos, Nigeria
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
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may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Companies and Allied Matters Act requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on
the following matters. We confirm that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii) the Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books and
returns adequate for our audit have been received from locations not visited by us;

iii) the Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

Pt Omoudsndi.

For: PricewaterhouseCoopers 31 March 2023
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

=

Engagement Partner: Pedro Omontuemhen
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000739



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Notes ¥'o00 ¥'ooo
Revenue 5 2,012,173 1,884,776
Cost of sales 6 (1,507,424) (1,479,380}
Gross profit 504,749 405,396
Other income 7 1,255,602 704,420
Operating expenses o 8 (65,387) (369,515)
Administrative expenses ] (530,708) (437,537)
Net impairment losses on financial assets G.1 (26,985) {10,843)
Operating profit 1,137,361 381,921
Finance costs 10 {69,811) (55,512)
Profit before tax 1,067,550 326,409
Minimum tax (16,339) (9,424)
Income tax expense 11 (97.045) (2,857)
Profit after tax 054,166 314,128
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 954,166 214.128
Bagic and diluted earnings per share (3¥) 12 1.65 0.54

The notes on pages 29 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
As at 31 December 2022

Statement of financial position

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
ASSETS Notes N'000 N'000
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 2,004,617 1,988,909
KIZOAL-OI-USE A8Sews 14 07,2543 49,740
Other receivables 17 331,632 412,515
Total non-current assets 2,403,502 2,351,160
Lurrent assets

Inventories 15 370,929 342,613
Trade and related party receivables 16 294,740 348,538
Other receivables 17 144,069 177,126
Cash and cash equivalents 18 260,316 347,675
Total current assets 1,070,054 1,215,952
Total assets EaéZéeEif' 3,567,112
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 14 27,727 20,086
Total non-current liabilities 27,727 20,086
Current liabilities

Lease liabilities 14 44,000 5,809
Trade and other payables 19 2,178,915 3,365,491
Contract liabilities 20 47,504 42,085
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 : 261,135 386,798
Employee benefit liabilities 22 61,079 61,107
Current income tax 1 136,900 23,522
Total current liabilities 2,820,539 3,884,002
Total liabilities 2,857,266 3,904,988
EQUILY

Share capital 23 289,873 289,873
Share premium 23 1,743,246 1,743,246
Accumulated deficits (1,416,829) (2,370,995)
Total equity 616,290 (337,876)
Total equity and liabilities 3.473.556 3,567,112

The notes on pages 29 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements, notes and other national disclosures on pages 25 to 77 were approved and authorised for issye by the
board of directorson _-21 __[M]eucAn 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

“Mur, Felix S. Afolabi Mr. Emeghinike Okeoji Mr. Sulemana K. Dauda
Chairman Accounts Manager Managing Director
FRC/2016/I0DN/00000014110 FRC/2022/PRO/ICAN/001/23369 FRC/2014/I0DN/00000007679
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Atr Liguide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Statement of cash flows

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Notes a'o0o N'ooo

Cash flows from operating activities
Cagh generated from operations 24 9,734 383,719
Income tax paid 11 - {5,352)
Employee benefits paid 22 (28) (28,381)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 9,706 349,986

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 13 (61,829) {268,706)
Procgeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13 . “ 37,289
Proceeds on disposal of scrap items 24 51,107 28,537
Net cash outflow from investing activities (10,722) (202,880)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid 21.2 (59,775) (44,533)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders 19.1 (v05) -
Principal repayments of leases 14 - (46,325)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (60,680) (90,858)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (61,696) 56,248
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18 (39,123) (95,371)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 (100,819) (39.123)

The notes on pages 29 to 74 are an integral patt of these financial statements.
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Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

These financial statetnents are the finanelal statements of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC ("the Company™}. Air Liquide Nigeria
PLC was incorporated in Nigeria on 25 January, 1960 under the Companies Ordinance (Cap 38) with RC No. 2078 as
Port Hareourt Gas Producers Limited, and is domiciled in Nigeria. It changed its name on 29 June, 1966 to Gas
Producers Limited. On 20 January, 1992, the name was again changed to Air Liquide Nigeria PLC. The Company is a
Public Limited Liability Company but not listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The shares of the Company are fully
owned by Nigerian citizens/ Companies (13%) and L'Air Liquide 8.A., France {87%). The address of its registered office is:

104/106 Ladipo Street
Matori, Mushin

Lagos

Lagos State, Nigeria

» »

The principal activities of the Company are manufacture and sale of industrial gases and related services. It also imports
and sells medical and welding equipment and accessories.

2 Significant accounting policies
2.1 Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2,2 Bagis of preparation

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as approved
by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act. Additional information required by National regulations is included where appropriate.

The financial statements comprise the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of
financial position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordarnce with the going concern principle under the historical cost
concept or otherwise where stated, All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated. The
financial statements are presented in thousands of Naira.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
Changes in assumptions may have a significant irnpact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Company's financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2.2,1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
i) New standards, amendments, interpretations adopted by the Company.

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022:
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Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use — Amendments to IAS 16 concessions —
Amendments to IFRS 16 (Effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an
item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended
use. It also clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the agset is functioning properly’ when it assesses technical and
physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of the asset is not relevant to this assessment.

Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not an output of
the entity’s ordinary activities.

The adoption of this amendment did not have any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these

financial statements. .
Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3 (Effective 1 January 2022)

Minor amendments were made to IFRS 3 Business Combinations to update the references to the Conceptual Framework

for Financlal Reporting and to add an exception for the recognition of Habilities and contingent liabilities within the scope

of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Interpretation 21 Levies. The

amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date.

The adaoption of this amendment did not have any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial staterments.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to 1AS 37 (Effective 1 January 2o22)

The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts, Before recognising a separate
provision for an onerous contract, the entity recognises any impairment loss that has occtrred on assets used in fulfilling
the contract.

The adoption of this amendment did not have any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts repotted in these
finanecial statements,

ii) New standards, amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective.

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable futtre transactions.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 (Effective 1 January 2023)
The narrow-scope amendments to TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as either
current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period, Classification is unaffected
by the entity’s expectations or events after the reporting date {e.g. the receipt of a waver or a breach of

covenant}, The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability.

The amendments could affect the classification of liabflities, particularly for entities that previously considered
management’s intentions to determine classification and for some labilities that can be converted into equity.

They must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (Effective 1
January 2023)

The TASE amended IAS 1 to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies, The
amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information” and explain how to identify when accounting policy
information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed.
If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information,
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2.3

()

To support this amendment, the IASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to
provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures,

Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 (Effective 1 January 2023)

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies lrow companies
should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important,
because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events,
whereas changes in accounting policies are generaliy applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as
well as the current peried.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS
12 (Effective 1 January 2023) .

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to
trangactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations, and will require the recognition of additional
deferred tax assets and liabilities,

The amendment should be applied to transactions that oceur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that they can he
utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:

» right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and

» decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the correspending amounts recognised as part of the cost of
the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in retained earnings, or another component of
equity, as appropriate.

I1AS 12 did not previcusly address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and similar transactions
and various approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have already accounted for such transactions
consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected by the amendments.

Other amendments and standards are not deemed to relate to the transactions of the Company,
Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal eperating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele

« It:is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

» There is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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(b) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at amortised cost {using the effective interest rate (EIR) method) at each
reporting date, The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability

Or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-finanelal asset takes into aecount a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

(¢) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and selling industrial gases and related services. It also imports and
sells medical and welding equipment and aceessories,

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with
customers are provided in Note 4. The policies impacting generally all revenue contracts are highlighted below;

Contract combinations and portfolio expedients

The Company has applied TFRS 15 practical expedient to a portfolio of contracts (or performanece chligations) with similar
characteristics since the Company reasonably expects that the accounting result will not be materially different from the
result of applying the standard to the individual contracts. The Company has been able to take a reasonable approach to
determine the portfolios that would be representative of its types of customers and business lines,

Significant finanecing component

Using the practical expedient in IFRS 15, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component since it expects, at contract inception, that the periocd hetween the transfer of
the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that gooed or setviee will be one year or less.
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Non-refundable deposits

Advance payment from customers occurs when the Company performs installation services. Air Liquide Nigeria PLC
recognises revente resulting from advance payment when milestones are reached evidenced by milestones certificate. A
contract liability is created with respect to the deposit received.

Refundable deposits

Revenue from the sale of gas is recognised when the cylinder is either delivered to the customer or collected by the
customer. Invoices are generated based on the point in time when the gas is delivered. A refundable deposit is coliected
on the sale of gas in a cylinder and is refundable when the cylinders are returned by the customer. A financial liability is
created with respect to refundable deposits received on the sale of gas in cylinders.

The detailed policies of revenue streams are itemised below;

Sales of goods: '

Sale of industrial gases

Revenue from sale of industrial gases is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods, The gases ave sold in cylinders and delivered to the customers. The normal
eredit term is 30 to 9o days upon transfer. The gas cylinders are released to customers and a refundable deposit is
received as commitment from customers before delivery can be made and customers atre refunded upon return of
cylinder.

The Compariy considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties). The Company does not give any
warranties on its procured products.

Sale of medical equipment

Revenue from sale of medical equipment is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred fo the
customer, generally on delivery of the equipment. The medical equipment are sold outrightly to the customers. The
normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon transfer. However, installation services provided on the sale of medical
equipment delivered is measured overtime.

Installation services
Revenue from installation of eylinders and equipment for industrial gases is recognised over time with an appropriate

measure of progress based on work done,

Alr Liquide provides installation services that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of medical
equipment to a customer. The installation services can be obtained from other providers and do not significantly
customise or modify the medical equipment (e.g. oxygen regulator, oxygen preguage, nitrogen oxide regulator ete.). The
medieal equipment are sold cutrightly including the cost of installation.

Contracts for bundled sales of equipment and installation services are comprised of two performance obligations because
the promises to transfer equipment and provide installation services are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable, Accordingly, the Company allocates the transaction price based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of
the equipment and installation services. The stand alone selling price on the installation services is estimated using the
expected cost plus 2 margin approach.

The Company recognises revenue from installation services over time, using output method (milestone reached) to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the

Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional,
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(d) Income taxes
i) Currentincome tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax expense and deferred tax expense.

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxation profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible,

Current tax may include under or over provisions relating to prior year taxation. The Company’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

ii) Value added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except:

+ where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as a part of the expense item
as applicable; and

« receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

The net emount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of finaneial position.

iii} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated on the liability method, using the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences except:

» where the liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

» in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled, and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, where it is probable that the asset will be utilised in the foreseeable future except:

» where the asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, only to the extent that it is probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future, and taxable
profit will be available against which these differences can be utilised.

The carryving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exient that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised based on tax rates/laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

34



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in ecrrelation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(e) Foreign currency transactions

Non-monelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined, The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetaty ftems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gdin or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss is
also recognised in profit or toss).

(f) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13)
i) Recognition and measurement

All property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset.

ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic henefits asgociated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance ave
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

iit) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than land and capital work-in progress)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following basis;

ASSET %

Land Non-depreciable
Buildings 3.3

Plant and machinery 3.3-10
Workshop equipment and Gas cylinders 2.5—10
Furniture equipment, Computer equipment and Air conditioners 25— 50

Motor vehicles 25

Assets in Progress Nil

The assets-in-progress represents building under construetion or machinery yet to be installed. It is stated at cost and not
depreciated. Depreciation on assets-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. The assets-

in-progress is tested and adjusted for impairment where necessary.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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iv) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. The gain. or losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the earrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment and are recognised net within profit or loss,

(g) Borrowing costs .
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset forits
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(h) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

— the eontract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from: use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

~ the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-maldng
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset if either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

The Company primarily leases land and building (used as office space, service centers and residency). The lease terms are
typically for fixed periods ranging from 2 years to 50 years but may have extension options as described below. On
renewal of a lease, the terms may be renegotiated.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components, The Compary has elected to separate lease and non-lease
components, The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions, including extension and termination options. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, however,
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases in which the Company is a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straighi-line basis.
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Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. Lease liabilities include the nel present value of the following lease payments:

- fized payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

- amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- the exarcise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
Tiability. The variable lease paymenis that do not depend on an index or a rate are recoghised as expenses in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right of use assetina
similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Ta determine the inctemental borrowing rate, the Company where possible, uses recent third party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received, The Company may also use a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Company and makes adjustments specific to the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
by the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment o purchase the
underlying asset where applicable,

Right of use assets
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, comprising of the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration cogts,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life based on the lease contract and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The measurement basis is cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The lease term of the right-of-use asset nature helow;

Asset Lease Term
Building 1-3 years
Land 1 - 50 vears

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Short-term leases are those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option, Low-value assets are assets that have values less than NGN2,055,740 ($5,000) when new, €.g.,
small IT equipment and small items of office furniture, and depends on the nature of the asset. Lease payments on ghort-
term leases and leases of low-value assets would be recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver
the lease term.
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Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in the Company's lease arrangements. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets zsed in the Company’s operations. Most of the extension options
are subject to mutual agreement by the lessee and lessor and some of the termination options held are exercisable only by

the Company.

(1) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrament of another entity. Further dislosures regarding the impairment of financial assets have been provided in Note

3.1.1.

i) Financial assets s s
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial reeognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing eompenent or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant finaneing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under TFRS 15. Refer to the
accounting policies in revenue from contracts with customers above.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCL it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Amortised cost measurement is within
a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Asgets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCIL.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows, The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into:

TFinancial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of

the following conditions are met:
« The financial asset is held within a business model with the ohjective to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows.
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are

subject to impairment, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, staff loans, cash and cash equivalents and
related parties receivables.

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

s The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pags-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the agset, but has transferred control of the asset.

£

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of iis continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured
on a hasis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets .

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:
» Disclosutes for significant assumptions Note 4

+ Trade receivables and other financial assets Note 16

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses {(ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the eash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collaterat Lield or other eredit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised either on a 12-month or lifetime expected credit loss basis. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in credit rigk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those eredit exposures for which there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance s required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies 2 simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment using the loss rate model.

For receivables from related parties (non-trade), and staff loans, the Company applies general approach in calculating
ECLs. Itisthe Company’s pelicy to measure ECLs on such asset on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding eontractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company.
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A financial agset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows, Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage ina
repayment plan with the Company, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 9o days past
due.

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Tinancial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
+  The Company’s financial Habilities include intercompany loans, trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade and other payables

"These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
pavables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of 8 new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profif or loss.

Offsctting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously,

{j) Inventories L
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost comprise direct materials cost and

where applicable, direct labour cost and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and cost to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.

Spare parts and servicing equipment are usually carried as inventory and recognised in profit or loss as consumed.
However, major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the company expects
to use them during more than one period. Similarly, if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used enly in
connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. Such
classified spares are depreciated as property, plant and equipment over the useful life on a straight line basis.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, or more frequently where events or changes in cireumstances dictate, tangible and intangible
assets, are assessed for indications of impairment. If indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment
review. For the purpose of conducting impairment reviews, cash-generating units are the lowest level at which
management monitors the return on investment on assets. The impairment review includes the comparison of the
carrying amount of the asset with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the assets
or the cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use (being the present value of the expected
future cash flows of the relevant asset or CGUs).
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Fair value less cost of disposal is calculated as the price that would he received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared

separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast

calculations generally cover a period of five vears. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and applied to

project future cash flows after the fifth year. . .

The carrying values of tangible and intangible assets are written down by the amount of any impairment and this loss is
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which it oceurs. In subsequent years, the Company assesses whether
indications exist that impairment losses previcusly recognised for tangible and intangible assets may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is recaleulated and, if required, its
carrying amount is increased to the revised recoverable amount, The increase is recognised in operating income as an
impairment reversal, An impairment reversal is recognised only if it arises from a change in the assumptions that were
used to calculate the recoverable amount, The increase in an asset's carrying amount due to an impairment reversal is
limited to the depreciated amount that would have been recognised had the original impairment not occurred.

(I} Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents arising during the period from operating
activities, investing activities and firancing activities,
The cash flows from operating activities are determined by using the indirect method. Net income is therefore adjusted by
non-cash items, and working capital adjustments such as changes from receivables and liabilities. In addition, all income
and expenses from cash transactions that ave attributable to investing or financing activities are eliminated.

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposit held at call with banks, other
short term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities,

(m) Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes. For an investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Therefore, an investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months
or less from the date of acquisition.

Bank overdrafts and short term borrowings are repayable on demand and form part of Company’s cash management for
the purpose of statement of cash flow only.

(n) Employee benefits
i) Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plan

Alr Liquide operates a defined contribution plan in line with the Pension Reform Act 2014. The contribution is recognised
as employee benefit expenses when they are due. Air Liquide has no further payment obligation once the contribution has
been paid. The contribution made towards securing future benefits in the scheme is as follows:

Management staff Non-Management staff
Employee 8% 8%
Employer 10% 10%
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For defined contribution scheme, Air Liquide recognises contributions due in respect of the accounting period in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Any contributions unpaid at the reporting date are included
as a liability.

Gratuity plans
Air Liquide operates a funded defined contribution gratuity scheme for its employees. The level of benefit provided is
based on the length of service and total emoluments of the person entitled.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate enfity. In
a defined contribution plan, the actuarial risk falls 'in substance' on the employee. The Company contributes 10% of the
total emoluments (basic, housing and transport allowances). The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. ,

The assets of this scheme are held in separate trustee administered funds, which are funded by contributioris from the
Company. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

i) Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, stch as salaries, paid absences, and other benefits, are accounted for on an accruals basis
over the period which employees have provided services in the year. Bonuses are recognised to the extent that the
company has a present obligation to its employees that ean be measured reliably. All expenses related to employee
benefits are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in staff costs.

{0) Provisions
Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material),

(p) Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities which include certain guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security, are possible
obligations that arise from past evenis whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of
one or more urncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or present obligations that have arisen
from past events but are not recognised because it is not probable that settlement will reqnire the outflow of economic
benefits, or because the amount of the obligations cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised
in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability of settlement is remote.

(9) Contractliabilities
A reporting entity should recognize a contract liability if the customer’s payment of eonsideration precedes the reporting
entity's performance (e.g., by paying & deposit). A contract liability may be called deferred revenue, unearned revenue, or
refund liability.

(r) Share capital
Share issue costs
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s
sharehotders. Dividends declared after the reporting date is dealt with in the subsequent period. A dividend withholding
tax is withheld on behalf of the taxation authority on dividend distributions, Withholding tax deducted at source is
included as part of trade and other payables at the time a dividend is declared.
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(s) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit after tax applicable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing other equity instruments, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account
the after income tax effective interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the
weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(t) Functional currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in naira, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date, Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

() Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board of directors.

The Board of Directors, examines the Company’s performance hoth from a product and geographic perspective and has
identified two reportable segments of its business, based on the timing of revenue recognition, of the revenue that the
Company generates from its customers consisting of:

» goods transferred al a point in time - These consist of industrial gases and medical and welding equipment, and
« services transferred over time - which relate to installation services, of eylinders and equipment for industrial gases,

(v) Comparatives
Except when a standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed with
comparative information.
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3.1

a.11

i)

it)

i)

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

This note explains the Company’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company’s future
financial performance. Current year profit and logs information has been included where relevant to add further
context.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and sesks to minimize potential effects on its financial
performance.

The Company's risk management is predominantly controlled by a central treasury department under policies approved
by the board of directors. Company treasury identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Company's operating units. The beard provides written prineiples for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and investment of excess liquidity.
These policies are mostly Air Liquide Global policies adopted for local use.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables.

Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a Company basis, For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with
a minimum rating of ‘A’ are accepted,

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings ate used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.
The compliance with credit limits by wholesale customers {s regularly menitored by line management.

Sales to retail customers are required to be settled in cash or using major credit cards, mitigating eredit risk. There are
no significant concentrations of eredit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors
and/or regions,

The Company’s investments in debt ingtruments are considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings of the
investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

Security
TFor some trade receivables the Company may obtain security in the form of guarantees, deeds of undertaking or letters
of credit which can be called upon if the ecounterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement,

Impairment of financial assets
The Company has two types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:

« trade receivables for sales of industrial gases, medical and welding equipment and from the provision of installation
services and
s debt investments carried at amortised cost,

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial,
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3.1.2 Liquidity risk

)]

i)

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity reserve (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities
below) and cash and cash equivalents (note 18} on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in
accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These limits take into account the liquidity of the market in which
the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet thege, monitoring statement of financial position
liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Financing arrangements .
Details of the Company's financing arrangements at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 21.

Maturities of financial Habilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial labilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their coniractual
maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial Habilities, and

(b) net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of Due within 1- 2 year(s) 2 - 3 years 3 - 5 years
financial liabilities one year
N'ooo N'o0o N'0o0 ¥'ooo

31 December 2022

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 361,135 - - -
Lease liabilities 44,000 22,000 22,000 -
Other payables 295,380 - - -
Employee benefit liahilities 61,079 - - -
Trade and other payables 2,178,915 - - -

2,940,509 22,000 22,000 -

31 December 2021

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 386,798 - - -
Lease liabilities - 18,880 41,713 -
Other payables 285,631 - - -
Employee henefit liabilities 61,107 - - -
Trade and cther payables 3,365,491 - - -

4,099,027 18,889 41,713 -

3.1.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rate (exposure arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities not denominated in the Nigerian Naira), interest
rates (exposure arising from long-term borrowings at variable rates) and security prices (exposure arising from
investments in equity securities) wil} affect the Company’s income or the value of its holding of financial instrumends,
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i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Air Liquide Nigeria PLC is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to its operating activities (i.e. when revenue/ expense and assets/ liabilities are
denominated in a different currency from the Nigerian Naira e.g. dollar), the Company’s exposure for the reporting period
shown is mainly due to related party receivables and payables denominated in foreign currency. During the year, the
Company managed its foreign exchange tisk using a cashflow matching strategy, by selling in foreign currency everything
purchased from abroad, The excess of FX collected was then used to finance the purely local market with a gain during the
conversion, Air Liquide’s foreign currency risk is mainly as a result of exposure to the US Dollar, Euro and GBP.

The Company’s exposura to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in foreign currency, was as

follows:

" 31December 2022 ’ USD EURO GBP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 335,695 25,035 -
Trade receivables 400,798 454 -
Intercompany receivables 25,579 89,900 10,908
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 17,648 127,840 -
Intercompany payables 130,966 201,514 1,855
31 December 2021, UsD EURO GBP
TFinancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 304,722 1,283 -
Trade recetvables 113,291 1,263 -
Intercompany receivables 2,949 87,871 -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 28,967 131,561 -
Intercompany payables 206,200 2,299,204 597,969
Sensttivity

As shown in the table above, the Company is primarily exposed to changes in EURQ/NGN exchange rates. The sensitivity
of protit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from EURO denominated financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis for currency rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market rates at the reporting date.

The sensitivity of the Company's earnings to fluctuations in exchange rates is reflected by varying the exchange rates at

15% (2021: 5%) as shown below:
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
N'o0o ¥'000
Impact on profit or loss - USD
15%/5% increase in exchange rates 320,888 322,147
15%/5% decrease in exchange rates (320,888) {222,147)
Impact on profit or loss - EURO
15% /5% increase in exchange rates (167,316) 1,232,516
15%/5% decrease in exchange rates 167,316 (1,232,516)
Impact on profit or loss - GBP
15%/5% increase in exchange rates 5,629 {5,546)
15% /5% decrease in exchange rates (5,629) 5,546
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The Company’s exposure to other foreign exchange movements is not material.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company is not materially exposed to interest rate risk as there are no long term borrowings or agsets at variable
interest rates or at fair value,

Price risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marlket
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The Company does not hold any financial
instruments whose value changes with changes in market prices and is not exposed to price risk.

4

Capital management

Risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and
+ maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt as shown below
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the statement of firancial position),

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

N'000 N'000

Total borrowings (Note 21) 361,135 386,798
Less: Cash and cash equivalents excluding bank overdrafts (Note 18) (260,316) (347,675)
Net debt 100,819 39,123
Total equity 616,290 (337,876)
Total capital 717,109 (298,753)
Gearing ratio 16% (12%)

Fair value
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Recurring fair value measurements at 31

December 2022 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
N'00Oo ¥'000 ¥'000 N'000

Financial liabilities (Note 21):
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

.Banl overdrafts 361,135 - 361,135 -

Total financial liabilities 361,135 - 361,135 -

There were no transfers between Level t and Level 2 during 2022,
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Recurring fair value measurements at 31

December 2021 Total Level1 Level 2 Level s
N'o00 ¥'ooo ®'ooo N'ooo

Tinancial liabilities (Note 21):

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

Bank overdrafts 386,798 - 386,798 -

Total financial liabilities 486,798 - 386,798 -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2021.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position wherg Air
Liquide Nigeria PLC currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross basis,
4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparztion of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
agsumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
diselosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. These accounting estimates by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be wrong. Detailed information
ahout each of these estimates and judgements is included in other notes together with information about the basis of
caleulation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which

have the most significant effect on the amounts recoghised in the financial statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of

revenue from contracts with customers:

Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of medical equipment and installation services
The Company has determined that each of its products is a distinct performance obligation as the customer can benefit
from the good either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer; and the
Company's promise to fransfer the good to the customer is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.

The Company provides installation services on equipment and this service is sold separately or bundled together with the
sale of medical equipment to a eustomer, The Company recognises revenue from installation services over time, using
output method (milestone reached) to measure progress towards complele satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Comparty. Revenue from the sale of the
medical equipment are tecognised at a point in time, generally upon delivery of the equipment.
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Determining the timing of satisfaction of sales of products and services rendered

Sales of medical gases and medical equipment and accessories

The Corzpany concluded that reverue for sales of medical gases and medical equipment i3 to be recognised at a point in
time; when the customer obtains control of the products. The Company assesses when control is transferred using the
indicators below:

Sales of related services

The Company concluded that revenue for installation of equipment and other related services is to be recognised over time
by measuring progress using output method. The compary transfers control of services performed based on milestones
reached, The Company assesses when control is transferred using the indicators below:

» The Company has a present right to payment for the product;

» The customer has legal title to the product;

» The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the produet; and
» The customer has accepted the asset.

Estimates and assumptions

Financial instraments

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company uses a prov:smn matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e,, by geography, product type, and
customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical ohserved default rates. The Company will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., Ol prices, Exchange rate, Inflation rate and Interest rate) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the Oil and Gas industry, the historical default rates are adjusted. At
every reporting date, the historical ohserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed,

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs s a
significant estimate, The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economie conditions.
The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 3.1.1.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets

The measurement of the expeeted credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost (due from related
companies) is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economie
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihoed of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniqutes used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 3.1.1.

Anumber of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

Choasing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

Establishing Companies of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Leases

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers ali facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended {or not terminated).
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The following factors are normally the most relevant:

- If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend {or
not terminate).

- If any leasehold improvements are expacted to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

- Otherwise, the Company considers other factors, including historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Ag at 31 December 2022, the potential future caghfiows that was not included in the lease liabilities because it is not
reasonably certain that the leases will be extended amounted to ¥2.7 million (net of all taxes).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exereised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to

+  exercise {or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant
change in eircumstances oceurs, which affects this assessment, and is within the control of the lessee. During the financial
vear, there were no revised lease terms.
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'goo N'ooo
Revenue from contracts with customers
The analysis of revenue by activity which were achieved within Nigeria are as follows:
Sale of goods:
Industrial gases 1,729,187 1,724,526
Medical and welding equipment 90,656 19,248
Other sales and installation services 192,330 141,002
2,012,173 1,884,776
Disaggregated revenue information !
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Industrial
Gases & Industrial Gases
Medical & Medical
Segments Equipment Equipment
N'ooo ¥'000
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,819,843 1,743,774
Services transferred over time 192,330 141,002
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,012,173 1,884,776

Performance obligations
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Sale of gases and medical equipment
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the product.

Installation and other related services
The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payment is generally due upon completion of
installation/maintenance/service and acceptance of the customer.

21 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'000 N'ooo

Contract balances
Trade receivables (Note 16) 407,882 434,695
Contract liabilities (Note 20) 47,504 42,085

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 te 9o days. In 2022, ®¥113.14 million was

recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (2021: ¥86.16 million).

Contract liabilities relate to unapplied advances received from customers.
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6  Costofsales

Production and direct staff costs (Note 6.4)

Raw materials and consumables

Non-produced gas - Cost of Argon

Non-produced gas - Cost Of Carbon Di-Oxide
Non-produced gas - Cost Of Sales - Hydrogen and Helium
Non-produced gas - Fuel and AirGases

Non-produced gas - Cost Of Nitrous Oxide & Propane Gas
Non-produced gas - Cost Of Sales - Qther

Produced gas - Stock Variation

Produced gas - Cost Of Produced Gases

Produced gas - Air Gases ~ LOX/LIN External Purchases
Produced gas - Gas, Carbide and Acetone Consumed
Electricity

Repairs and maintenance

Write off of inventories (Note 15)

Carriage on sales (Note 6.1)

Rent and leasing (Note 6.2)

Other selling and distribution costs (Note 6.3)

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
N'ooo ¥'oo0
128,842 215,140
80,788 51,780
389,035 309,305
8,421 12,809
72,804 24,158
145 58
133,206 141,629
71 3,298
9,093 8,069
59,479 58,505
230,789 261,799
3,764 8,624
22,826 21,299
63,188 93,770
4,522 2,330
139,913 105,509
88,129 114,073
72,229 47,231
1,507,424 1,479,380

6.1 Carriage on sales represents the cost of conveying goods from one area to the other and conveyance of goods to customer

sites.

6.2 Rental charges ave mainly from cylinder and tank rentals charged by Air Liquide Oil & Gas Services and Oilfield Hire

Services.

6.3 Other selling and distribution costs represent bonuses, allowances and commissions on sales.

6.4 Employee benefits expense
Included in cost of sales:
Wages and salaries
Pension costs

Included in administrative expenses:
Wages and salaries
Pension costs

Total employee benefits expense
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2022 2021

¥N'ooo N'ooo

112,741 162,765

16,101 52,375

128,842 215,140
171,231 133,300

16,394 19,351

181,625 152,651
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=7  Other income

Sundry income (Note 7.1)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on termination of lease

Insurance claims

Technical and license fees writeback

Writeback of rental fees (Note 7.2)

Net exchange gain (Note 8.2)

2

7.1 Sundry income represents profits from disposal of scrap items,

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
¥'ooo N'ooo
51,107 28,537

- 36,763

- 5,433

- 92,069

- 631,618
1,020,957 -
183,628 -
1,255,602 794,420

7.2 Writeback of rental fees represents intercompany payable amounts written off by Air Liguide Oif & Gas Services (ALOS), a
related party, primarily for rental invoices issued to the Company between 2016 and 2022,

8  Operating expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14)

Loss on termination of lease

Technical and license fees (Note 8.1)

Net exchange loss (Note 8.2)

COVID-19 relief expenses

Other operating expenses

81 included in Note 25.

8.2 Netexchange difference

Exchange loss
Exchange gain

N'ooo ¥'oo00
46,121 39,505
12,384 14,823

5,803 -
- 308,640

1,077 2,026

- 2,621
65,387 369,515

Technical and license fees represents royalty charged by the parent company, L’Air Liquide S.A., France. The rates are

¥'ooo N'ocoo
274,726 739,029
(458,354) (430,389)
(183,628) 308.640

Net exchange difference on foreign denominated transactions (trade and intercompany refated).

55



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

9 Administrative expenses

Administration staff costs - Salaries And Wages
Administration staff costs - Bonus And Allowances
Administration staff costs - Fringe Benefits
Administration staff costs - Accrued Vacation Expenses
Administration staff costs - Other Payroll Charges
Administration staff costs - Medical Expenses
Administration gtaff costs - Empyer Contrib.(Itf,Pens,Retd)
Administration staff costs - Training Fees
Administration staff costs - Temporary Staff

Audit fees

Electricity and diesel

Insurance costs

Maintenance costs

#*Management and administrative costs

Donations

Professional fees and charges

Travel, lodging and accommodation

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'ooo N'ooo
61,052 44,260
36,254 33,601
22,396 22,133
17,854 5000
167 -
10,098 6,990
10,394 19,351
209 340
23,201 20,977
12,000 10,000
35,086 20,828
24,433 49,793
31,378 29,978
127,494, 77,657
3,317 5,193
81,668 53,653
32,807 37,784
530,708 437,537

*Management and administrative costs include training fees, water, oil/Iubricants, purchase of equipment and accessories,
rental expenses, bank service charges, entertainment and travel expenses, telephone and postage, publicity and advert,
property damages & business interruption insurance, printing and stationeries, security expenses and subscriptions.

9.1 Netimpairment losses on financial assets (Credit loss expense)

The tables below show the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the income statement:

Stage 1 Simplified
31 December 2022 Collective Model Total
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost - related party - 2,191 2,191
receivables
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost - trade - 24,794 24,794
receivables
- 26,085 26,985
Stage 1 Simplified
31 December 2021 Collective Modecl Total
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost - trade - 10,843 10,843
recelvables
- 10,843 10,843
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'ooo N'ooo
10 Finance costs
Interest expense on borrowings (Note 21.2) 59,775 44,533
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,036 10,979
69,811 55.512
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11

Company income and deferred tax
Current income tax

Education tax

Police trust fund levy

Capital gains tax

Income tax credit

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total charge to profit or loss

Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

N'o00 N'000

- 2,771

48 16

(70) 70

(4!887) =
101,954 -
97.045 2,857

The tax on the Company’s loss before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise usitg the statutory

income tax rate as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax caleulated at statutory tax rate of 30%
Mintmum tax adjustment

Effect of permanent differences

Education tax

Police trust fund levy

Capital gains tax

At the effective income tax rate of 13.1% (2021: 3.8%).

Current income tax liability

Balance at 1 January

Charge for the year:

Edueation tax

Capital gains tax

Minimum tax

Income tax credit

Police trust fund levy

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Payments during the year

At 31 December

Deferred income tax

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'ooo N'oo0
1,067,550 326,409
320,265 97,923
16,339 9,424
(239,538) (t07,347)
- 2!771

48 16

(70} 70
97,045 2,857
N'ooo ¥'000
23,522 16,593

- 2:771

(70) 70
16,339 9,424
(4,887) -
48 16
101,654 -

- (5,352)

136,906 23,502

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that futare taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The net deferred tax assets of ¥747.39 million {(2021:%713.05
million) for the Company have not been recognised as at 31 December 2022 hecause it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

57



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Staternents
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'0CO N'000
Deferred tax liabilities (173,725) (7,720)
Deferred tax assets 921,115 720,771
Net deferred tax assets 747,391 713,051
000 N'ooo

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets
At the beginning of the yeax 713,051 721,137
Accelerated capital allowances (relating to PP&E} (8,087} 14,018
Unutilised tax credits {capital allowances) 36,079 s -
Unrealised exchange difference (50,335} (78,770}
Tax losses 19,458 (34,4413
Provisions 27,151 03,121
Leases 9,173 (7,014}
At the end of the year 747,301 713,051

12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reperting period.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date

and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

¥'ooo N'ooo

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 954,166 514,128
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ('000) 579,746 579,746
Basic and diluted earnings per share (33) 1.65 0.54
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14 Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.

i Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets - Land
Right-of-use assets - Building

At 1 January

Lease modifications

Depreciation expense
Termination/derecognition of right-of-use agsets

At 31 December
ii Lease liabilities
At 1 January
Lease modifications
Interest expense
Payments made during the period

Lease liability termination

At 31 December

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
X000 ¥'000
67,253 45,071

- 4!665

67,253 49,736
¥'000 X'000
49,736 67,964
70,177 -
(12,384) (14,823}
{40,276) {3,405)
67,253 49,736
N'ooo N'ooo
(25,985) (70,168)
(70,177) -
{10,036) (10,979)
- 46,325

34,471 8,837
(71.727) (25.985)

The total cashflow for all leases for 2022 was nil (2021:346.33M). The fair values approximate their carrying values,

Lease liabilities

Current
Non current

Other expenses during the pericd
Short term lease
Non-lease component that was expensed during the period
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{44,000) (5.899)
(27,727) (20,086)
(71.727) (25,085}
N'ooo ¥'ooo
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iii Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

N'0oo '000

Depreciation charge on right of use assets
Right-of-use assets - Land 7,719 14,823
Right-of-use assets - Building 4,665 -
12,384 14,823
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 10,036 9,022
iv Liquidity risk (maturity analysis of lease liabilities)

o-3months  4-12 months 1-2 years Above 2 years

N'o00 N'000 N'000 ¥'000

Lease liabilities - 44,000 22,000 22,000
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

N'000 N'ooo

15 Inventories

Welding and medical equipment 111,034 116,862
Raw and packaging materials 117,001 54,664
Spare parts 39,391 41,196
Gases 121,063 129,851
Goods-in-transit* 11,227 33,349
399,716 375,922

Inventory provisions {(28,787) (33,309}
370,929 342,613

*QGoods in transit represents inventory which has been shipped by the supplier but yet to be received by the Company as at

year end.
Amount of inventory charged to cost of sales

Amount of inventory written off during the period

987,776

880,028

4,522

2,330

The amount of inventory written off during the period is included within inventory provisions. Other inventory provisions

amounts relate to inventory write downs which are due to obsolescence and damages.

Included in profit or loss are write-down of spares and other inventories items, The write downs are due to obsolescence

and damages. The amounts above have been included in Note 6.
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16 Trade and related party receivables

Trade receivables
Receivables from related parties (Note 25a)

Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 16.1)
Total trade and related party receivables

16.1  Allowance for expected credit losses

3

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

N'ooo ¥'000
354,274 392,571
53,608 42,124
407,882 434,695
{113,142) (86,157)
294,740 348,538

3

An analysis of changes in the aggregate ECI, allowances (trade receivables and receivables from related parties) is as

follows:

At 1 January .
Impairment of financial assets (IFRS g) - Trade receivables

Impairment of finaneial assets (IFRS g) - Intercompany receivables

At 31 December

N'000 N'000
86,157 75:314
24,794 10,843

2,191 -

113,142 86,157

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and arve generally on terins of 30 1o 90 days. For terms and conditions relating

to related party receivables, refer to Note 25.

Grading system for trade and intercompany receivables, and recognition of their gross carrying amount and expected

credit losses are included under credit risk Note 3.1.1.

17 Other receivables
Total prepayments and other assets as at end of the year
Maturity:
Current (due within 12 months from the reporting date)
Prepayments

Withholding tax recoverable
Employee loans and advances

Non-current (due after 12 months from the reporting date)
Withholding tax recoverable

17.1  Prepayments

Prepaid expenses
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Note 17,1
Note 17.2
Note 17.3

Note 17.2

N'ooo N'o0o
475,701 489,641
27,855 56,973
111,551 111,551
4,663 8,602
144,069 177,126
331,632 312,515
N'ooo N'00O
27,855 56.973
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17.2

17.3

18

~ Withholding tax recoverahle

This relates to withholding tax deducted by customers of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC, which is recoverable for income tax
purposes. The recoverable tax credit in one year can be used to offset or reduce the tax expenses of the Company.

Movement schedule of withholding taxes
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

N'0o0 N'00o

At 1 January 424,066 412,327
Additions . . 47,833 11,739
Amounts impaired (28,715) -
At 31 December 443,184 424,066

Other receivables represents mainly employee loans and advances.

Advances are amounts provided to staff that are required to be retired by the staff. The staff loans represent interest free
loans given to members of staff of Air Liquide Nigeria Ple, The loans repayments are usually monthly or quarterly;
depending on the agreement with individual members of staff. The loans are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and are tested for impairment for uncollectibility. Expected loss ealeulations on staff loans are rounded
off to zero,

This is stated at the fair value of interest free loans given to staff of Air Liquide Nigeria Plc. These are amortised annually
and recognised in profit or loss as interest income. They are also disclosed as part of the employee benefit for the period.
The terms ave:

+The fair value (i.e. present value of the future cash flow} of the loan was determined using the market interest rate or the
Central prime lending rate.

A monthly deduction is made from payroll over the tenor of the loan.

«Terms of repayment are agreed with any staff that is existing in the business but have outstanding loan receivables,

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
¥'o00 N'oco

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 468 274
Cash at banks 259,848 347,401
Cash in hand and at bank 260,316 347,675

The Company has not pledged its bank balance as collateral in respect of any financing arrangement.
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

N'ooo ¥'000

Cash and bank balances 260,316 347,675
Less: bank overdrafts (Note 21.1) (361,135) (386,798)
(100,819} (39,123)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts.

63



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

19

19.1

19.2

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Due to related parties (Note 25b)
Dividend (Note 19.1)

Other payables (Note 19.2)
Other accruals

All trade payables are due within twelve (12) months.
Dividend payable

At1 January
Dividends paid

At 31 December

Other payables

National Social Insurance Trust Fund

#*Refundable deposit for cylinders

Withholding tax payable

Value added tax deductible on purchases & on import
Value added tax collected on sales & deducted at source
*Others

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'00o ¥'000
464,999 480,951
1,259,568 2,405,385
74,813 75718
340,028 372,498
39,507 30,939
2,178,915 3,365,491
N'ooo N'ooo
75,718 75,718
{go5) -
74,813 75,718
¥'oo0 N'000
1,355 6,584
295,380 285,631
61,026 55,377
(151,980) (99,366)
115,015 74,122
18,732 50,149
340,028 372,498

*Qthers relate to PAYE tax, Industrial Training Fund, National Housing Fund, Social Security Contribution, Union Dues

and Directors fees payable,
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.

For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 25.
Other payahles are non-interest bearing and have an average term of one year.

For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 3.1.1.
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#* This represents deposits collected on cylinders from customers on the sale of gas. This is refundable when the eylinders

20

21

21.1

21.2

22

are returned by the customer. A financial liability is created with respect to refundable deposits received on the sale of gas
in eylinders. The fair values approximate their carrying values.

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Contract liabilities ¥'000 ¥'000
Deposit by customers 47,504 42,085
Contract liabilities consists of advance payments from customers.

N'ooo ¥'000
At 1 Januay 42,085 57,715
Advance (unmatched) payments received from customess 5,419 3,630
Advance payments applied (reclassified to customer account) - (19,260)
At 31 December 47,504 42,085
Interest bearing loans and borrowings N'0oo N'ooo
Bank overdrafts (Note 21.1) 361,135 586,798
: N'ooo N'coo
Current interest bearing loans and borrowings
Bank overdrafts on demand 361,135 386,798

N'000 N'000
Interest hearing loans and borrowings movement
At 1 January 386,798 298,187
Additions/withdrawals - 88,611
Interest expense/charge* 59,775 44,533
Repayments of principal/deposits (25,663) -
Interest paid (59,775} (44,533}
At 21 December 361,135 386,798

*Interest expense/charge relates to the interest on overdrafis.

Bank overdraft
Details of bank overdraft are:
During the year, the Company was granted banking facilities by Stanbic IBTC Bank PLC with a maximum aggregate limit

of 500 million to be availed to the Company as the aggregate limit for an overdraft facility, guarantee by bank {GBB)
facility, trade finance facility limited to letters of eredit (LC) and import finance (IF) facility. Of this maximum aggregate
limit, the Company utilised ¥300 millior: via overdraft at an interest rate of 15% per annum to finance working eapital
requirements. Within the provisions of the banking facillties offer letter, the Company is entitled to request that all or part
of any unused portions of the maximum aggregate limit for a particular facility be allocated to another facility. On this
basis, the Company further overdrew additional amounts of this unused portion of the maximum aggregate limit. The
facilities are unsecured by a free and floating charge over the Company’s assets and do not attract any cost if they are not
utilised. The bank overdraft facilities are subject to annual renewal.

Employee benefit liabilities

Below are the details of movements and amounts recognised in the financial statements:

N'ooo N'ooo
Liability recognised in the financial position 61,079 61,107
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The movement in the employee benefit Habilities over the years is as follows:

Af 1 January
Benefits paid

As at 31 December

Employee benefit liabilities ~ defined
contribution plan

a

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

N'000 N'ooo

61,107 89,488

(28) (28,381)

61,079 61,107

61,079 61,107

Effeetive from 1 October 2018, the defined benefit obligation was cancelled by the management and the amount payable
to individual employee was communicaied and agreed with the employee. Consequently the liability was moved to short
term payable, pending the transfer of funds to FBN Quest Asset Management who also manage the revised employee

benefit plan.

Following the closure of the defined benefit plan, the Company began a defined contribution plan which is maintained
with the fund managers, FBN Quest Asset Management. The defined contribution scheme has a three (3)-year vesting
condition, The Company contributes 10% of the annual total emoluments (basic, housing and transport allowances) to

the fund. There are no outstanding amounts yet to be transferred in respect of this plan.

23  Ordinary share capital and share premium
Issued and authorised share capital

Authorised:
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of ¥0.50 each

Issued and fully paid:
579,746,461 ordinary shares of 80,50 each

Issued and fully allotted:
Share premium
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N'ooo N'0ooo
600,000 600,000
289,873 289,873

1,743,246 1,743,246
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Cash generated from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation - Property, plant and equipment (Note 13)
Depreciation - Right-of-use assets (Note 14)
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases (Notes 8 & 7)

Net foreign exchange difference (Note 8.2}

Profit on disposal (Note 7)

Impairment allowance for trade receivables (Note 9.1)
Interest expense (Note 10)

Inventory written off (Note 15)

Changes in working capital:

- (Increase)/decrease in inventories

- Decrease in trade and other receivables
-Decrease in other receivables
-(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
- Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

In the statement of cash flows, profit on disposal compriges;

Proceeds on disposal of scrap items
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net bock value of property, plant and equipment disposed (Note 13)

Profit on disposal of assets (Note 7)

In the statement of cash flows, changes in working eapital comprise:

- (Increase)/decrease in tnventories
Inventories - current vear
Inventories - prior year

Inventory written off (Note 15)

~ Decrease in trade and other receivables
Trade and related party receivables (gross) - current year
Trade and related party receivables (gross) - prior year

-Decrease in other receivables
Total prepayments and other assets as at end of the year - current year
Total prepayments and other assets as at end of the year - prior year
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021
N'ooo N'000
1,067,550 326,409
46,121 39,505
12,384 14,823
5.805 (5,433)

, 183,628 (208,640}
(51,107) (65,299)
26,985 10,843
69,811 55,512
4,522 2,330
1,365,699 70,050
(32,838) 142,262
26,813 1,559
13,940 19,529
(1,369,299) 164,039
5419 {(13,720)
9,734 383,719
N'ooo N'goo
51,107 28,537

- 37,289

- (526}

51,107 65,300
¥'ooo ¥'ooo
(370,929) (342,613)
342,613 487,205
(4,522) (2,330)
(12,838) 149,262
{407,882) (434,695)
434,695 436,254
26,813 1,559
(475,701) (489,641)
489,641 509,170
13,040 19,529
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-(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Trade and cther payables - current year

Trade and other payables - prior year

Refundable deposit for cylinders

Net foreign exchange difference (Note 8.2)
Dividends paid (Note 19.1)

- Increase/(decrease) in contract Habilities
Contract liabilities - current year
Contract liabilities - prior year
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3t December 31 December
2022 2021
N'G00 N'000
2,178,915 3,365,491
(3,365,491) (3,253,680)
- (256,412)

(183,628) 308,640
905 -
(1,369,299} 164,039
47,504 42,085
(42,085) (55,805)
5.419 {13,720)
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25 Related parties

Information about related parties

Air Liquide Nigeria PLC is incorporated in Nigeria, Ownership of the Company's shares is distributed widely amongst
shareholders. Air Liquide Nigeria PLC is coutrolled by I Alr Liquide S.A. incorporated in France which is the ultimate
parent and Ultimate holding company of Air Liguide Nigeria Ple, There are other companies that are related to Air Liquide
Nigeria PLC through common shareholding or common directorships. Transactions were entered into with related parties

in the normal course of business.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Trade mark, trade name and technology license agreements

® The Company has entered into a Technology Licence and Assistance Agreement and a Trademarks and Trade-name Licence
Agreement with L’Air Liquide 8.A., France, its holding eompany. Under the technical assistance agreement, L’Air Liquide

S.A., France shall offer technical assistance to Air Liquide Nigeria PLC.

Under the technology licence agreement, the Company is permitted to use the technology of L'Air Liquide S.A., France in
Nigeria wheress under the trademarks licence agreement, the Company is permitied to use any and, all trademarls owned

by E’Air Liquide 8.A,, France. The 2 agreements took effect from 31 December 1997.

In consideration for this, nil amount was recognized for the current year royalty and technical service fees (2021 #¥18.39
miliion). Due to the actual Forex issues in Nigeria and the difficulties to make payments, Air Liquide $.A has agreed to
waive the effects of the agreements for g years (starting from 2022). The percentage waived would amount to 2.3% of net

sales.

A number of transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These are disclosed below:

a Due from related Nature of

parties relationship

Air Liquide Benin Republic Fellow subsidiary
Air Liquide Oil and Gas Limited Fellow subsidiary
Air Liquide Togo Fellow subsidiary
Air Liquide Senegal Fellow subsidiary
Air Liquide Ghana Limited Fellow subsidiary
Air Liquide Congo Limited Fellow subsidiary

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
N'oo0 ¥'000
21,917 24,197
5,421 800
1,105 1,235
305 412
20,872 11,630
3,987 3,850
53.608 42,124

There was no write-off of balances due from related parties during the year under review (2021: Nil).
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b Due to related Nature of 31 December 31 December
parties relationship 2022 2021
N'ooo N'ooo
L'Air Liquide Services Centraux Parent company 58,435 63,051
Air Liquide Gabon (Gaboa) Fellow subsidiary 1,023 1,023
Afrgas Fellow subsidiary 1,170 30,301
Air Liguide Ghana Ltd Fellow subsidiary 50,741 74,078
Air Liquide Cote D'Ivoire Fellow subsidiary 851,291 830,123
Air Liquide Southern Africa Fellow subsidiary 34,875 34,145
Air Liquide Senegal Fellow subsidiary 21,930 21,385
Air Liguide Global E&C Solutions Fellow subsidiary 199 2,622
India Private Limited
Alr Liguide Benin Fellow guhsidiary 19,355 22,818
Air Liquide Cameroun ’ Fellow subsidiary 34,945 * 20,666
Air Liquide Welding Ttalia S.P.A Fellow subsidiary - 1
Air Liquide Mali Fellow subsidiary - 1,467
Air Liquide Oil & Gas Services Logistics Fellow subsidiary - 812,514
Air Liquide Oil & Gas Services Fellow subsidiary 1,001 295,230
Air Liquide Maritime SAS Fellow subsidiary 1,602 -
Alr Liquide Gulf Fellow subsidiary 41,281 37,946
Air Liquide Burkina Faso Fellow subsidiary - 11,496
Air Liquide Global E&C Sclutions Fellow subsidiaty 671 204
France S5.A
Air Liguide Global E & C Solutions US Inc. Fellow subsidiary 380 -
Air Liquide France Industrie - Gesp Fellow subsidiary 2,427 2,367
Air Liquide Togo Fellow subsidiary 27,012 21,069
Air Liquide E&C Johanneshurg Fellow subsidiary - 7,977
Air Liquide Middle East & North 306 -
Africa Free Zone
Air Liquide France Industrie - GESP Fellow subsidiary - 2,637
Alr Liquide Africa Services (PTY) Lid Fellow subsidiary 83,052 72,037
Air Liquide Congo Fellow subsidiary 2,869 5,952
Oilfield Hire and Services Limited Fellow subsidiary 430 6,777
AL Europian Platforms and Services Fellow subsidiary 1,983 1,933
Air Liquide Medical Systems (TAEMA) Fellow subsidiary - 1,266
Afr Liquide Dept Siege Fellow subsidiary 20,790 5,406
1,259,568 2,405,385
Transactions with rvelated Nature of
parties transaction §'000 N'ooo
Air Liguide Benin Sales of gases 1,461 2,649
Air Liquide Burkina Faso Purchase of gas 10,515 -
Air Liquide Camercun Personnel services 4,217 14,591
Afr Liquide Cote D'Ivoire Purchase of gas - (19,420)
Air Liquide E&C Johannesburg Purchase of gas 8,002 (106)
Air Liquide Maritime SAS Purchase of gas 1,442 -
Air Liguide Global I & C Solutions US Inc. Purchase of gas 371 -
Air Liquide France Industrie - Gesp Personnel services 1,002 678
Alr Liquide Ghana Limited Purchase of asset 33,107 15,947
Air Liquide Global E&C Solutions France S.A  Personnel services 2,038 128
Air Liquide Global E&C Solutions India Personnel services - 2,429
Private Limited
Aijr Liguide Medical Systems (Taema) Personnel services 1,311 1,266
Qilfield Hire and Services Limited Purchase of gas 6,267 -
Air Liquide Oil and Gas Limited Purchase of gas 4,621 -
Alr Liguide Gil & Gas Services Write-off of payables owed 1,038,660 (38,965)
Air Liquide Speena Purchase of gas 3,605 (130,202)
Air Liquide Togo Personnel services 6,104 15,780
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Transactions with related Nature of

parties transaction

Alrgas Purchase of gas

L'Afr Liguide Services Centraux Derecognition of royalties liability
Air Liquide Gulf Personnel services

Air Liguide Mali Personnel services

Air Liquide Scuthern Africa Personnel services

Adr Liquide Middle East & North Africa Free  pypchase of gas

Zone

Alr Liguide Congo Personnel services

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
¥'000 N'oo0
38,276 35,714

620,021 (584,158)

- 2,600

953 (13)

- 1,606

299 -
6,422 -

Transactions with other related parties are basically supply of welding and medical items, specialty gases, rental and other

services.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balaneces at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

d) XKey management compensation

Key management personnel of the Company are the directors. The compensation paid or payable to key management for

employee services is shown below:

Short term benefits
Directors’ fees and sitting allowance
Other emoluments

Aggregate emoluments

N'oo0 N'000

1,250 1,250
36,085 59,744
37.335 60,094

There was no other compensation paid during the period. Fees and other emoluments disclosed above include amounts

paid to;

The emoluments of the chairman
The emoluments of the highest paid Executive Director (M.D)

Other directors

N'ooo N'000
2,500 2,500
36,085 36,954
6,000 6,000

The number of directors of the Company {including the highest paid Director) whose remuneration, excluding pension

contributions in respect of services to the Company fell within the following ranges:

Less than 150,000
150,001-250,000
Above 250,000
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26 Directors and employees

a  Theaverage number of persons (excluding Directors) employed by the Company during

Managerial and senior staff
Junior staff

year and were within the bands stated.

<2,000,000

. 2,000,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 5,000,000
5,000,001 - 6,000,000
> 6,000,000

27 Staff costs for the above persons (excluding Directors):

Salaries and wages
Post - employment benefits
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Number Number
25 36
12 13
37 49

The table below shows the number of employees (excluding Directors), who earned over 32,000,000 as emoluments in the

Number Number
- 8

15 19

i 6

5 5

1 1

9 10

37 49

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
¥'000 ¥'o00
283,972 206,065
26,495 71,726
910,467 367,791
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28 Contingent liabilities
Below is the contingent liahilities of the Company as at the statement of financial position date.

[Partics Subject matter Amount
Mr. Augustine Irahor The clalmant in this sUit was a former area manager of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC. On (€150,020
V8. 2oth of June, 1999 he was expatriated to G.1.S Air Liquide France by Air Liquide
Adir Liquide (Nig) 8.A. France whereof his employment with Air Liquide Nigeria PLC ceased. 2,000,000
PLC,
Air Liquide (Ghana) [Cn 13th of January, 2001, the claimant accepted further expatriation to Air Liquide
LTD. Ghana Ltd, where he functioned as an Executive Director,

However, by a letter of termination of employment dated 12th December, 2006, he
was relieved of his employment by Air Liguide Ghana with his terminal benefits
calculated and paid vide Euro Cheque for the sum of €35,176.75 which was duly
aclknowledged by him and signed for.

He thereafter filed an action before the Industrial Tribunal of Paris in 2007 against
Air Liquide International which transferred him to the services of Air Liquide
Ghana Ltd. and Air Liquide Ghana.

He lost his case in France and came to Nigeria and instituted the suit making Air
Liquide Nigeria PLC a party to the suit on the ground that his last employer, Air
Liquide Ghana Ltd. acted for and on behalf of Air Liquide Nigeria PLC when it
terminated his employment on the 12th of December 2006,

The final judgement was delivered on 2nd January 2022 in favour of Mr, Augustine
Irabor whereat he was ordered to be paid £150,020 within 30 days failing which the
judgment sum would atiract 2% simple interest until liquidation. Additionally, the
court also awarded the sum of ¥2 million as costs in favour of the claimant to be
paid by the Defendants jointly within 30 days from the date of judgement.

The defendants have elected to exercise their constitutional right to appeal by the
notice of appeal dated 3rd February 2022,

29 Commitments
The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
30 Events after reporting period

There are no post balance sheet events which could have had a material effect on the finaneial position of the Company as at
31 December 2022.

31 Compliance with regulatory bodies

The Company has been compliant with the rutes of the relevant authorities (securities and exchange commission) in the
filing and submission of its financial statements.

73



Air Liquide Nigeria PLC

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements

32

33

a)

b)

Going concern,

The Company recorded a total comprehensive income of ¥954.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 {2021;
¥314.1 million} and as at that date, the Company’s total assets exceeded its total liabilities by ¥616.3 million (2o21: total
liabilities exceeded its total assets ¥337.9 million).

The Company had an industrial accident in April 2018 which led to an eventual shutdown of the Port Harcourt plant in

January 2019, After a period of 4 years, the Company has returned in 2022 to a positive net result. This has been possible |
because of the review of the pricing of the Company, the limitation of the exposure with its customers, the cost control i
measures implemented and the support of the head office who have waived some liabilites.

The ambition of the Company for 2022 and going forward is to continue to imptrove its profitability using the benefit of the
starting of its new production unit at Port~-Harcourt in the 2nd half of 2023.

As a result of the above, the director’s have prepared the financial statements on the basis of accounting policies dpplicable
to a going concern. This is premised on the deployment of a well thought out strategy to restore profitability and improve
cash flows.

Compliance with Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRCN) Rule zb and Rule 3 (paragraph 4)
Details of professionals that provided assurance services to Air Liguide Nigeria PLC during the year:
No such services were rendered during the year,

No non-audit services were provided to Air Liquide Nigeria PLC by PricewaterhouseCoopers during the year.

34 Climate change assessment

Over the years, Air Liquide Group and its subsidiaries including Air Liquide Nigeria PLC has been committed to sustainable
growth aimed, in particular, at limiting its CO2 emissions and those of its customers. On November 30, 2018, Air Liquide
Group announced its climate objectives, in particular 2 30% reduction in its carbon intensity between 2015 and zo25, with a
global approach that includes its assets, its customers, and ecosystems, These objectives are the most ambitious in the
sector and are in line with the Company’s program.

To reach this ambition, in March 2021, Air Liquide committed to reach carbon neutrality by 2050, with two intermediary
steps: starting to reduce its absolute CO2 emissions around 2025, then reaching a 33% decrease of its Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions by 2035 compared to 2020. Moreover, the Group also maintained its existing objective to reduce by 30% its
carbon intensity by 2025 compared to 2015. A new strategy plan named "Advance”, for the management of greenhouse gas
emissions was defined and implemented last year. This newly formed organization, along with the decisions taker: and the
actions performed by the Group secure the objective of emissions inffection in absclute value around 2025 and the decrease
by 30% of carbon intensity,
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31 December 31 December
2022 2021

N'ooo % N'ooo %
Revenue 2,012,173  137% 1,884,776 245%
Bought in materials and services:
Local (1,103,399} (120%) (976,961) (127%)
Imported (696,893)  (47%) (933,420)  (121%)
Other income 1,255,602 86% 704,420 103%
Value added 1,467,573 100% 768,815  100%
Applied as follows: ,
To pay employees
Wages, salaries and other benefits 310,467 21% 367,792  47.84%
To pay providers of capital:
Finance costs 59,775 4% 44,533 5.79%
To pay government:
Tax expense 97,045 7% 2,857 0.37%
To provide for enhancement of assets and growth:
Depreciation of plant, property and equipment ' 46,121 3% 39,505 5.14%
Retained profit for the year 954,166 65% 314,128 41%
Value added ‘ 1,467,573  100% 768,815 100%
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

N'0o0 N'ooo ¥'000 N'ooo N'ooo
Financial position
Capital employed:
Ordinary share capital 289,873 289,873 280,873 289,873 90,000
Share premium 1,743,246 1,743,246 1,743,246 1,743,246 4,314
Accumulated deficits (1,416,829)  (2,370,995)  {2,685,123) (1,661,427) {917,746)
Total equity 616,290 (337,876) {652,004) 371,692 (823,432)
Represented by:
Property, plant and equipment 2,004,617 1,088,909 1,760,234 1,103,436 784,054
Intangible assets \ - - - 3 824
Right-of-use assets 67,253 49,736 67,964 61,400 -
Other receivables -non-current 331,632 312,515 281,912 451,470 469,007
Net current liabilities (1,759,485)  (2,668,950)  (2,470,239) (949,429) (1,798,718)
Non-current borrowings (27,727) (20,086) (291,875)  (295,187.54) (278,599)
Net assets/(liabilities) 616,200 (337,876) {652,004} 971,602 (823,432)
Net assets/(liabilities) per share (¥) 1.06 (0.58) {1.12) 0.64 (4.57)

Net assets/(liabilities) per share Is caleulated by dividing net assets/(liabilities) of the Company by the number of ordinary shares

outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Financial result N'ooo N'o00 N'ooo N'ooo N'000
Revenue 2,012,173 1,884,776 1,597,823 1,954,635 1,719,033
Operating profit/(loss) 1,137,361 381,921 (994,464) (659,054) (426,423)
Finance costs (69,811) (55,512) (19,769) (74.854) {69.163)
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 1,067,550 326,409 (1,014,233) (733,908) {495,586)
Tax charge (113.384) {12,281) (9,463) (9.773) (12,158)
Profit/(loss} for the year 954,165 314,128  (1,023,606) (743.681) (507.744)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
(3 1.65 0.54 {1.77) (1.28) (2.82)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
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